
 
 

     
 
 
 
 

HERITAGE HARBOR 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
Agenda Package 

 
Regular Meeting 

 
Tuesday 

December 12, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

 
Location: 

Heritage Harbor Clubhouse 
19502 Heritage Harbor Parkway 

Lutz, FL 33558 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials are 
considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or adoption. 

 



Heritage Harbor 
Community Development District 
 

 

250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary FL 32746 
(321) 263-0132  

 
 

 
Board of Supervisors  
Heritage Harbor Community Development District  
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Heritage Harbor Community Development 
District is scheduled for Tuesday, December 12, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. at the Heritage Harbor 
Clubhouse, 19502 Heritage Harbor Parkway, Lutz, FL 33558. 
 
An advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 
your review and consideration. Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions regarding the agenda, please contact me at (321) 263-0132 X-285 or 
tdobson@dpfgmc.com. We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Tish Dobson 
Tish Dobson 
District Manager 
 
 
 
 
Cc: Attorney  

Engineer 
District Records 

 

mailto:tdobson@dpfgmc.com


Page 1 of 2 
 

District: HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, December 12, 2023 
Time: 5:30 PM 
Location: Heritage Harbor Clubhouse 

19502 Heritage Harbor Parkway 
Lutz, Florida 33558 

Call-in Number: +1 (929) 205-6099  
Meeting ID: 913 989 9080 
Passcode: 842235 
Zoom Link: 
https://vestapropertyservices.zoom.us/j/9139899080?pwd=aFdWVzFxb3Y0L2w4eG9VTnZRakl0UT09 

Agenda 

I. Roll Call  
II. Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for 

agenda items) 
 

III. Presentation of Proof of Publication(s) Exhibit 1 
IV. Landscape & Pond Maintenance  

A. Greenview Landscape as Inspected by OLM – November 16, 
2023 – 93.5% 

Exhibit 2 

1. Presentation of County Water Restrictions Exhibit 3 
B. Steadfast Environmental – Waterway Inspection Report Exhibit 4 

V. Consent Agenda  
A. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of 

Supervisors Regular Meeting Held November 14, 2023 
Exhibit 5 

B. Consideration for Acceptance – The October 2023 Unaudited 
Financial Report – To Be Distributed 

 

VI. Business Matters  
A. Presentation of Final FY 2022 Audit Exhibit 6 
B. Consideration & Adoption of Resolution 2024-01, Appointing 

Assistant Treasurer 
Exhibit 7 

C. Consideration & Adoption of Resolution 2024-02, Designating 
Signatories 

Exhibit 8 

D. Consideration of Southscapes Landscape Lawn Service Proposals Exhibit 9 
1. Estimate #1086  
2. Estimate #1087  

VII. Staff Reports  
A. District Attorney  
B. District Engineer  
C. District Manager & Field Operations Report – To Be Distributed  
D. Golf Operations  

https://vestapropertyservices.zoom.us/j/9139899080?pwd=aFdWVzFxb3Y0L2w4eG9VTnZRakl0UT09


Page 2 of 2 
 

VIII. Supervisors Requests  
IX. Audience Comments – New Business – (limited to 3 minutes per 

individual for non-agenda items) 
 

X. Next Meeting Quorum Check: January 9, 5:30 PM 
 

David Penzer  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Russ Rossi  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Clint Swigart  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Shelley Grandon  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Jeffrey Witt  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

 

XI. Adjournment  
 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTICE OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REGULAR MEETING

Notice is hereby given that a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the 
Heritage Harbor Community Development District (the “District”) will be held on 
Tuesday, December 12, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. at the Heritage Harbor Clubhouse, 19502 
Heritage Harbor Parkway, Lutz, FL. The purpose of the meeting is to discuss any 
topics presented to the board for consideration.

Copies of the agenda may be obtained from the District Manager, Vesta District 
Services, 250 International Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, Florida 32746, Tele-
phone (321) 263-0132, Ext. 285.

The meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of Florida law for community development districts. The meeting may 
be continued in progress without additional notice to a date, time, and place to be 
specified on the record at the meeting. There may be occasions when Staff and/or 
Supervisors may participate by speaker telephone.

Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requir-
ing special accommodations to participate in the meeting is asked to advise the Dis-
trict Manager’s office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting by contact-
ing the District Manager at (321) 263-0132, Ext. 285. If you are hearing or speech 
impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 711, for assistance in contacting 
the District Manager’s office.

A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the meeting, with respect to 
any matter considered at the meeting, is advised that a record of the proceedings is 
needed and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record 
of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based.
Heritage Harbor Community Development District
Tish Dobson, District Manager
(321) 263-0132, Ext. 285
December 1, 2023                                                                  23-03620H 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 



HERITAGE HARBOR CDD 
LANDSCAPE INSPECTION 
November 16, 2023 

 
ATTENDING: 
ADAM RHUM – GREENVIEW LANDSCAPING 
PAUL WOODS – OLM, INC. 
 

 
CATEGORY I: MAINTENANCE CARRYOVER ITEMS 
 
 NONE 
  
CATEGORY II: MAINTENANCE ITEMS 
 
HARBOR TOWNE 
 
1. Remove debris along curbs throughout parking lot. 

 
2. Outdoor seating area: Remove leaf accumulations during weekly visits.  Also 

redistribute mulch to cover bare soil. 
 

3. Continue to tip prune Podocarpus to improve screening at the restaurant outdoor bar. 
 

4. Tip prune Copperleaf to improve shrub-like quality. 
 

5. Hand prune dead wood from Crotons near the Oleander. 
 

6. Complete palm pruning prior to Christmas. 
 

7. Remove Ball and Spanish Moss up to 15 feet from common area trees and palms. 
 

8. Treat Blue Daze for disease. 
 

9. Complete all palm fertilizations. 
 
PARKWAY 
 
10. North end: Remove sand, gravel, and debris accumulations from curb lines. 

 
11. Remove windfall and debris from mulch beds. 

 
12. Sea Cove exit: Continue to target prune stubs, dead wood, and weak attachments up to 

15 feet from right-of-way trees.  Consider elevation of the Maple tree. 
 
ENTRANCE 
 
13. Improve Asiatic Jasmine planting beds.  I recommend applying liquid fertilizers to flush 

new growth. 
 

14. Remove unapproved commercial signage along right-of-ways. 
 

NEXT INSPECTION 
DECEMBER 21, 2023 AT 12:30 PM 

SCORE: 93.5% 



15. Line trim detail around the electrical pole to the east of the Cypress Green Drive/Lutz 
Lake Fern Road intersection. 
 

16. Remove windfall and trash during weekly visits. 
 

17. Remove herbicide treated weeds. 
 
COMMONS 
 
18. 19000 block of Harborbridge Lane: Remove the cone from the wood line. 

 
19. Buff out crack weeds. 

 
20. Center island south of Harbor Lake Drive: Improve or replace fungal damaged Liriope. 

 
21. Remove bed weeds from Liriope planting beds. 

 
CATEGORY III: IMPROVEMENTS – PRICING 
 
1. Cypress Green Drive entrance: Provide a proposal to install additional Society Garlic. 
 
2. Provide a price to mulch the waterfall planting bed. 

 
CATEGORY IV: NOTES TO OWNER 
 
1. Please note change of the December inspection time. 
 
2. Clubhouse: I recommend mulching.  This will improve appearance, aid in weed control,  

and improve fertility and moisture retention. 
 

3. Note to Tish – I recommend complete mulching of the property.  It has been 2 years 
since a complete mulching and most beds are thin with bare soil visible. 

 
CATEGORY V: NOTES TO CONTRACTOR 
  
1. Please note change of the December inspection time. 
 
2. Make note of the SWFWMD 1 day per week irrigation restrictions effective December 1. 
 
 
cc: Jackie Leger jleger@dpfgmc.com  

Tish Dobson tdobson@dpfgmc.com 
Ray Leonard rleonard@greenacre.com 
Larry Rhum debs@greenviewfl.com 
 
 

mailto:jleger@dpfgmc.com
mailto:tdobson@dpfgmc.com
mailto:rleonard@greenacre.com
mailto:debs@greenviewfl.com


HERITAGE HARBOR CDD 
 

MONTHLY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE INSPECTION GRADESHEET 
 

A. LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE VALUE DEDUCTION REASON FOR DEDUCTION 

TURF 5   

TURF FERTILITY 15   

TURF EDGING 5   

WEED CONTROL – TURF AREAS 10 -2 Crabgrass 

TURF INSECT/DISEASE CONTROL 10   

PLANT FERTILITY 5   

WEED CONTROL – BED AREAS 10 -1 Islands 

PLANT INSECT/DISEASE CONTROL 10   

PRUNING 10 -7 Tree limb moss/Complete palms 

CLEANLINESS 10   

MULCHING 5  NEEDED 

WATER/IRRIGATION MANAGEMENT 15   

CARRYOVERS 5   
 

B. SEASONAL COLOR/PERENNIAL 
MAINTENANCE VALUE DEDUCTION REASON FOR DEDUCTION 

VIGOR/APPEARANCE 10    

INSECT/DISEASE CONTROL 10   

DEADHEADING/PRUNING 10  Pinch Coles flowers 

MAXIMUM VALUE 145   
 

Date:  11-16-23   Score:  93.5   Performance Payment™100  
 
Contractor Signature:            
 
Inspector Signature:            
 
Property Representative Signature:          
 

         975 Cobb Place Blvd., Suite 304, Kennesaw, GA  30144 Phone: 770.420.0900 Fax:  770.420.0904  www.olminc.com 
 

http://www.olminc.com/


  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 











  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 



Inspec�on Date:

Prepared by:

WWW.STEADFASTENV.COM
813-836-7940

STEADFAST OFFICE:

12/4/2023 2:16 PM

Niklas Hopkins

Heritage Harbor CDD Aquatics

Account Manager



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 Comments: 

Inspec�on Report

SITE:

SITE:

Condi�on:  Excellent         Great         Good         Poor         Mixed Condi�on         Improving�

Comments: 

Condi�on:  Excellent         Great         Good         Poor         Mixed Condi�on         Improving�

WATER:            ������������������������������������������������
ALGAE:            �������������������������������������
	����������������������������
	���������������
� ������������� ������������������
	������������������������������������������	���
����
GRASSES:        ��������������������������������������	����
�����������������
��
���
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
�����������	����	�������������������������	�
������������������
��������������������������������� �
������������������������������������������������� �����������
����

WATER:            ������������������������������������������������
ALGAE:            �������������������������������������
	����������������������������
	���������������
� ������������� ������������������
	������������������������������������������	���
����
GRASSES:        ��������������������������������������	����
�����������������
��
���
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
�����������	����	�������������������������	�
������������������
��������������������������������� �
������������������������������������������������� �����������
����

1

2

This pond is in excellent condition. No major algae growth or nuisance vegetation
observed. Routine maintenance and monitoring will occur here.

Only thing to note in this pond was some decaying subsurface matter along the
perimeter. Technician will continue to monitor and treat accordingly.



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 Comments: 

Inspec�on Report

SITE:

SITE:

Condi�on:  Excellent         Great         Good         Poor         Mixed Condi�on         Improving�

Comments: 

Condi�on:  Excellent         Great         Good         Poor         Mixed Condi�on         Improving�

WATER:            ������������������������������������������������
ALGAE:            �������������������������������������
	����������������������������
	���������������
� ������������� ������������������
	������������������������������������������	���
����
GRASSES:        ��������������������������������������	����
�����������������
��
���
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
�����������	����	�������������������������	�
������������������
��������������������������������� �
������������������������������������������������� �����������
����

WATER:            ������������������������������������������������
ALGAE:            �������������������������������������
	����������������������������
	���������������
� ������������� ������������������
	������������������������������������������	���
����
GRASSES:        ��������������������������������������	����
�����������������
��
���
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
�����������	����	�������������������������	�
������������������
��������������������������������� �
������������������������������������������������� �����������
����

3

4

Light green tint indicates the presence of Planktonic algae. No other nuisance
vegetation growth was observed. Routine maintenance and monitoring will occur
here.

Water level in pond is low. Planktonic algae was present. Pond is in excellent
condition otherwise.



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 

 

 

 

 Comments: 

 

Inspec�on Report

SITE:

 

 

SITE:

Condi�on:  Excellent         Great         Good         Poor         Mixed Condi�on         Improving�

Comments: 

Condi�on:  Excellent         Great         Good         Poor         Mixed Condi�on         Improving�

WATER:            ������������������������������������������������
ALGAE:            �������������������������������������
	����������������������������
	���������������
� ������������� ������������������
	������������������������������������������	���
����
GRASSES:        ��������������������������������������	����
�����������������
��
���
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
�����������	����	�������������������������	�
������������������
��������������������������������� �
������������������������������������������������� �����������
����

WATER:            ������������������������������������������������
ALGAE:            �������������������������������������
	����������������������������
	���������������
� ������������� ������������������
	������������������������������������������	���
����
GRASSES:        ��������������������������������������	����
�����������������
��
���
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
�����������	����	�������������������������	�
������������������
��������������������������������� �
������������������������������������������������� �����������
����

5

6

Observed some subsurface growth within this pond. Very minor amounts of
torpedo grass was present along some parts of the perimeter. Technician will treat
accordingly during future maintenance events.

Pond is in excellent condition. Routine maintenance and monitoring will occur here.



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 

 

 

 

 Comments: 

 

Inspec�on Report

SITE:

 

 

SITE:

Condi�on:  Excellent         Great         Good         Poor         Mixed Condi�on         Improving�

Comments: 

Condi�on:  Excellent         Great         Good         Poor         Mixed Condi�on         Improving�

WATER:            ������������������������������������������������
ALGAE:            �������������������������������������
	����������������������������
	���������������
� ������������� ������������������
	������������������������������������������	���
����
GRASSES:        ��������������������������������������	����
�����������������
��
���
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
�����������	����	�������������������������	�
������������������
��������������������������������� �
������������������������������������������������� �����������
����

WATER:            ������������������������������������������������
ALGAE:            �������������������������������������
	����������������������������
	���������������
� ������������� ������������������
	������������������������������������������	���
����
GRASSES:        ��������������������������������������	����
�����������������
��
���
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
�����������	����	�������������������������	�
������������������
��������������������������������� �
������������������������������������������������� �����������
����

7

8

No major algae or nuisance vegetation observed. Technician will continue with
routine maintenance and monitoring.

This pond is extremely low on water. Some nuisance grasses were observed in the
middle of the pond. Our technician can address in upcoming visits.



STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

 

 

 

 

 Comments: 

 

Inspec�on Report

SITE:

 

 

SITE:

Condi�on:  Excellent         Great         Good         Poor         Mixed Condi�on         Improving�

Comments: 

Condi�on:  Excellent         Great         Good         Poor         Mixed Condi�on         Improving�

WATER:            ������������������������������������������������
ALGAE:            �������������������������������������
	����������������������������
	���������������
� ������������� ������������������
	������������������������������������������	���
����
GRASSES:        ��������������������������������������	����
�����������������
��
���
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
�����������	����	�������������������������	�
������������������
��������������������������������� �
������������������������������������������������� �����������
����

WATER:            ������������������������������������������������
ALGAE:            �������������������������������������
	����������������������������
	���������������
� ������������� ������������������
	������������������������������������������	���
����
GRASSES:        ��������������������������������������	����
�����������������
��
���
NUISANCE SPECIES OBSERVED:
�����������	����	�������������������������	�
������������������
��������������������������������� �
������������������������������������������������� �����������
����

9

10

This pond is in excellent condition. Not too much to note. Our technician will
continue to monitor and treat accordingly.

Minor amounts of Torpedo grass and slender spikerush were observed on the
backside of this pond. Pond is in great condition otherwise and will continue to
receive routine treatment.



 

       STEADFAST ENVIRONMENTAL 813-836-7940

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY

RECOMMENDATIONS

Inspec�on Report

75

With December finally here, fall gives way to winter. We can expect mornings and nights, as well as
evenings, to have colder temperatures with the occasional higher daytime temperature. The growth rate for
both algae and nuisance plants are slowing as a result, giving technicians the ability to make headway in
more overgrown areas. Rain events are becoming less frequent, leading to extended decay times for surface
algae (further extended by the cold weather). Additionally, water levels across most ponds will be/are
decreasing.

On this visit, nearly all ponds inspected were in excellent condition. Nuisance grasses were the main issue
observed during this inspection, specifically Torpedo Grass. This was present around the perimeter of many
ponds and within the beneficial vegetation. These grasses will be targeted at full force during these winter
months while growth rates are slow. Algae was practically non existent. Any surface growth had been
previously treated and was already beginning to decay. We will continue to treat any additional growth that
pops up.

Continue to treat ponds for algae, administer follow-ups to ponds experiencing extended decay times.

Administer treatments to any nuisance grasses growing along exposed shorelines and within beneficial
plants.

Continue to apply treatment to overgrown littoral areas.

Avoid overtreating ponds, to prevent fish kills or toxic blooms.

Stay alert for debris items that find their way to the pond’s shore.

Thank you for choosing Steadfast Environmental!



 

 

                          

 
 

Inspec�on Report

MAINTENANCE AREA



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

HERITAGE HARBOR 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Heritage Harbor Community Development 4 
District was held on Tuesday, November 14, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. at the Heritage Harbor Clubhouse, 19502 5 
Heritage Harbor Parkway, Lutz, Florida 33558. 6 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Roll Call 7 

Ms. Dobson called the meeting to order and conducted roll call. 8 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  9 

Shelley Grandon Board Supervisor, Chairwoman 10 
Russ Rossi Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 11 
Jeffrey Witt Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 12 
David Penzer Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 
Clint Swigart Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 

Also, present were: 15 

Tish Dobson District Manager, Vesta District Services 16 
Tracy Robin (joined in progress) District Counsel, Straley Robin Vericker 17 
John Panno Golf Course Manager 18 
Jamey McMullen Double Bogeys 19 
Melissa Chevalier Resident 20 
Elaine Kaufman Resident 21 

The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the November 14, 2023 Heritage Harbor 22 
CDD Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting. 23 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments 24 

Ms. Chevalier asked that the Board consider adding colorful vegetation to the main parkway. 25 
Discussion ensued. 26 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Double-Bogeys – Jamey McMullen 27 

This item, originally item C under the Seventh Order of Business, Business Matters, was 28 
presented out of order. 29 

A. Exhibit 7: Consideration of 2nd Amendment to Sublease Agreement & Golf Course Concession 30 

Discussion ensued regarding duplicate items, FFE speed rails, on the lists in the sublease 31 
agreement. 32 

This item, originally item B under the Seventh Order of Business, Business Matters, was 33 
presented out of order. 34 

B. Exhibit 6: Consideration of Double Bogeys Landlord Consent & Waiver Agreement 35 

Mr. McMullen provided a brief explanation of what this was for and how it would affect the 36 
business and the District. 37 

On a MOTION by Mr. Penzer, SECONDED by Mr. Swigart, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 38 
the Double Bogeys Landlord Consent & Waiver Agreement, for the Heritage Harbor Community 39 
Development District. 40 

 41 



Heritage Harbor CDD November 14, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 2 of 4 

 
Mr. McMullen provided updates on the restaurant and upcoming events. Discussion ensued. 42 

Discussion ensued regarding updating the signage on Lutz Lake Fern Rd. to include the Pro Shop 43 
and Double Bogeys, and overall advertisement of both services within the community. 44 

This item, originally item D under the Eighth Order of Business, Staff Reports, was presented 45 
out of order. 46 

C. Golf Operations 47 

Mr. Panno provided his report for the month. Discussion ensued. 48 

The meeting moved to Exhibit 1 under the Fifth Order of Business, Landscape & Pond 49 
Maintenance, at this time. 50 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Presentation of Proof of public(s) 51 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Landscape & Pond Maintenance 52 

A. Exhibit 1: Greenview Landscape as Inspected by OLM – October 30, 2023 – 95% 53 

B. Exhibit 2: Steadfast Environmental – Waterway Inspection Report 54 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Consent Agenda 55 

A. Exhibit 3: Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 56 
Held October 10, 2023 57 

On a MOTION by Mr. Penzer, SECONDED by Mr. Rossi, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 58 
the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Held October 10, 2023, for the Heritage Harbor 59 
Community Development District. 60 

B. Exhibit 4: Consideration for Acceptance – The September 2023 Unaudited Financial Report  61 

On a MOTION by Mr. Penzer, SECONDED by Mr. Rossi, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 62 
the September 2023 Unaudited Financial Report, for the Heritage Harbor Community Development 63 
District. 64 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Business Matters 65 

A. Exhibit 5: Consideration of Southscapes Landscape Maintenance Mulch Installation Proposal 66 

Discussion ensued. 67 

On a MOTION by Mr. Witt, SECONDED by Mr. Swigart, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 68 
the Southscapes Landscape Maintenance Mulch Installation proposal for the clubhouse, both entrances, and 69 
beds that were not included in the proposed enhancement proposals, for the Heritage Harbor Community 70 
Development District. 71 

B. Exhibit 8: Consideration of Club Car Used Golf Cart Proposal 72 

Discussion ensued. 73 

On a MOTION by Ms. Grandon, SECONDED by Mr. Witt, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 74 
the Club Car Used Golf Cart proposal, at a not-to-exceed of $5,500.00, for the Heritage Harbor Community 75 
Development District. 76 

 77 



Heritage Harbor CDD November 14, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 3 of 4 

 
C. Exhibit 9: Review of HCSO Service Increase 78 

A resident asked what the agreement was with HCSO. Discussion ensued. 79 

D. Exhibit 10: Presentation of HOA/CDD Letter 80 

Discussion ensued. 81 

E. Exhibit 11: Presentation of Notice of Determination 82 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Staff Reports 83 

A. District Attorney 84 

Discussion ensued regarding the Double Bogeys Landlord Consent & Waiver Agreement and the 85 
2nd Amendment to Sublease Agreement & Golf Course Concession. 86 

B. District Engineer 87 

There being none, the next item followed. 88 

C. Exhibit 12: District Manager & Field Operations Report 89 

Ms. Dobson provided updates on projects within the District. Discussion ensued. 90 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisors Requests 91 

Mr. Penzer asked if there was an update regarding the insurance on the slide. Discussion ensued. 92 
He also suggested a workshop for the new year to be held at 7PM to allow more residents to attend 93 
so that they may ask questions about the CDD and of the CDD. 94 

Mr. Swigart noted the he will have difficulty attending February through April meetings due to 95 
busy work schedule. 96 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments – New Business 97 

A resident asked about the website ownership and noted that the HOA website was not up to date.  98 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – December 12, 5:30 PM 99 

All Supervisors present stated that they would be present at the Tuesday, December 12th Board 100 
meeting at 5:30 PM.  101 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 102 

Ms. Dobson asked for final questions, comments, or corrections before requesting a motion to 103 
adjourn the meeting. There being none, Mr. Penzer made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 104 

On a MOTION by Mr. Penzer, SECONDED by Mr. Rossi, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board adjourned 105 
the meeting at 7:03 p.m. for the Heritage Harbor Community Development District. 106 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered 107 
at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, 108 
including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 109 

Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 110 
meeting held on December 12, 2023. 111 

 112 

 113 

 114 



Heritage Harbor CDD November 14, 2023 

Regular Meeting Page 4 of 4 

 
 115 

 116 

Signature  Signature 

Printed Name  Printed Name 

Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary  Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman 117 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2022 

 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

 

CONTENTS 
PAGE 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report ................................................................................................ 1-3 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis ............................................................................... 4-8 
 

Government-wide Financial Statements:  
 

 Statement of Net Position ................................................................................................ 9 
 

 Statement of Activities ..................................................................................................... 10 
 

Fund Financial Statements: 
 

 Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ............................................................................. 11 
 

 Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances 
   to Net Position of Governmental Activities  .............................................................. 12 
 

 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
  Fund Balances – Governmental Funds  ..................................................................... 13 
 

 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
  and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds  
  to the Statement of Activities  .................................................................................... 14 
  

 Statement of Net Position – Enterprise Fund ................................................................... 15  
 

 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
  Fund Balances – Enterprise Fund  ............................................................................. 16  
 

 Statement of Net Position – Enterprise Fund ................................................................... 17  
 

Notes to the Financial Statements .......................................................................................... 18-31 
 

Required Supplementary Information 
 

 Statement of Revenues and Expenditures – Budget and Actual – General Fund ............  32 
 

 Notes to Required Supplementary Information ...............................................................  33 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and  
 on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  
 Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards  ................................... 34-35 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with the Requirements of Section  
 218.415, Florida Statutes, Required by Rule 10.556 (10) of the Auditor General  
 of the State of Florida ...................................................................................................... 36 
 

Auditor’s Management Letter Required by Chapter 10.550, Florida Statutes ......................  37-39 



DMHB 
DIBARTOLOMEO, MCBEE, HARTLEY & BARNES, P.A. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 

2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 Fort Pierce, Florida 34950772-461-8833  Fax: 772-461-8872 
591 S.E. Port St. Lucie Blvd., Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984772-878-1952Fax: 772-878-1709 

 

Member AICPA                              Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms                               Member FICPA 
Private Company Practice Section 

 

WWW.DMHBCPA.NET 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

 
To the Board of Supervisors            
Heritage Harbor Community Development District 
Hillsborough County, Florida 
 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each 
major fund of Heritage Harbor Community Development District, Hillsborough County, Florida 
(“District”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the 
District as of September 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinions. 



 

- 2 - 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 
based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 



 

- 3 - 

because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 7, 2023, on our consideration of the Heritage Harbor Community Development 
District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, rules, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

We have also issued our report dated November 7, 2023 on our consideration of the District’s 
compliance with requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, as required by Rule 
10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.  The purpose of that report is to 
provide an opinion based on our examination conducted in accordance with attestation Standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  
 

 
DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A. 
Fort Pierce, Florida 
November 7, 2023



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 4 - 

Our discussion and analysis of Heritage Harbor Community Development District, Hillsborough 
County, Florida (“District”) financial performance provides an overview of the District's financial 
activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the 
District's Independent Auditor's Report, basic financial statements, accompanying notes and 
supplementary information to the basic financial statements. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year 
resulting in a net position balance of $8,211,266. 

 
 The change in the District's total net position in comparison with the prior fiscal year was 

$350,354, an increase.  
 
 At September 30, 2022, the District's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 

balances of $897,590.  A portion of fund balance is restricted for debt service and future 
capital repairs and replacement, and the remainder is unassigned fund balance which is 
available for spending at the District’s discretion. 
 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as the introduction to the District's financial 
statements. The District's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all the District's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving 
or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods. 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 5 - 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are 
principally supported by special assessment revenues (governmental activities from other functions 
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges 
(business-type activities). The governmental activities of the District include the general government 
(management) and maintenance and operations.  The business-type activities of the District include 
the operations of the golf course, and pro shop. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. The District has one fund category: governmental funds. 
 

Governmental Funds 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on 
near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a District's near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact 
of the District's near-term financing decisions. 
 
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The District maintains two individual governmental funds for external reporting. 
Information is presented in the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and 
capital projects fund. All funds are major funds. The District adopts an annual appropriated 
budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the 
general fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget. 
 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 6 - 

Proprietary Funds  
 
The District maintains one type of proprietary fund: enterprise. The District maintains one 
enterprise fund. An enterprise fund is used to report the same functions presented as 
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The District uses an 
enterprise fund to account for the operations of the water and sewer utility. Proprietary funds 
provide the same type of information as government-wide financial statements, only in more 
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the water and 
sewer fund, which is considered a major fund. 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
GOVERNMENT WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity's financial 
position. In the case of the District, liabilities exceeded assets at the close of the most recent fiscal 
year. A portion of the District's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, land 
improvements and infrastructure). These assets are used to provide services to residents; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The remaining balance of 
unrestricted net position may be used to meet the District's other obligations. 
 

Key components of net position were as follows: 
 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Current assets 953,686$       834,933$       1,301,502$    883,745$       2,255,188$    1,718,678$    
Capital assets 5,331,505      5,576,504      1,899,084      1,367,874      7,230,589      6,944,378      

Total assets 6,285,191      6,411,437      3,200,586      2,251,619      9,485,777      8,663,056      
Current liabilities 388,701         349,830         261,911         129,310         650,612         479,140         
Long-term liabilities 425,000         323,000         198,899         -                623,899         323,000         

Total liabilities 813,701         672,830         460,810         129,310         1,274,511      802,140         
Net position

Net invested in capital assets 4,583,505      4,942,504      1,617,471      1,367,874      6,200,976      6,310,378      
Restricted for debt service 100,880         102,096         -                -                100,880         102,096         
Unrestricted 787,105         694,007         1,122,305      754,435         1,909,410      1,448,442      
     Total net position 5,471,490$    5,738,607$    2,739,776$    2,122,309$    8,211,266$    7,860,916$    

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES TOTAL

Statement of Net Position

 

The District's net position increased during the most recent fiscal year. The majority of the change 
represents the degree to which program revenues exceeded ongoing cost of operations. 
 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 7 - 

Key elements of the District's change in net position are reflected in the following table: 
 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Program revenues 1,199,956$    1,199,793$    1,276,214$    1,129,771$    2,476,170$    2,329,564$    
General revenues 50,833           24,928           370                13                  51,203           24,941           

Total revenues 1,250,789      1,224,721      1,276,584      1,129,784      2,527,373      2,354,505      
Expenses

General government 172,432         219,215         -                -                172,432         219,215         
Physical environment 893,626         791,313         -                -                893,626         791,313         
Golf course and restaurant -                -                1,062,071      1,164,493      1,062,071      1,164,493      
Interest on long-term debt 24,240           31,113           -                -                24,240           31,113           
Cost of issuance 24,650           -                -                -                24,650           -                

Total expenses 1,114,948      1,041,641      1,062,071      1,164,493      2,177,019      2,206,134      
Change in net position 135,841         183,080         214,513         (34,709)         350,354         148,371         

Transfers (402,958)       -                402,958         -                -                -                

Net position - beginning of year 5,738,607      5,555,527      2,122,305      2,157,018      7,860,912      7,712,545      
Net position - end of year 5,471,490$    5,738,607$    2,739,776$    2,122,309$    8,211,266$    7,860,916$    

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES TOTAL

Change in Net Position

 

As noted above and in the statement of activities, the cost of all governmental activities during the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2022 was $2,177,019, which primarily consisted of interest on 
long-term debt and costs associated with constructed and maintaining certain capital improvements. 
The costs of the District’s activities were funded by special assessments. 
 
GENERAL BUDGETING HIGHLIGHTS 
 
An operating budget was adopted and maintained by the governing board for the District pursuant 
to the requirements of Florida Statutes. The budget is adopted using the same basis of accounting 
that is used in preparation of the fund financial statements. The legal level of budgetary control, the 
level at which expenditures may not exceed budget, is in the aggregate. Any budget amendments 
that increase the aggregate budgeted appropriations must be approved by the Board of Supervisors. 
Actual general fund expenditures did not exceed appropriations for the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2022. 
 
The variance between budgeted and actual general fund revenues is not considered significant. The 
actual general fund expenditures for the current fiscal year were lower than budgeted amounts due 
primarily to anticipated costs were not incurred in the current fiscal year.  
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
 
At September 30, 2022, the District had $7,230,589 invested in capital assets and construction in 
process. Construction in process has not completed as of September 30, 2022 and therefore is not 
depreciated to date. More detailed information about the District’s capital assets is presented in the 
notes of the financial statements. 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 8 - 

Capital Debt 
 
At September 30, 2022, the District had a $748,000 Note outstanding for its governmental activities 
and $281,613 lease liability outstanding for it business-type activities.  More detailed information 
about the District’s capital debt is presented in the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS, NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND OTHER INFORMATION 
 
For the fiscal year 2023, the District anticipates the cost of general operations to fluctuate and 
projections are that cost will be higher due to inflationary impacts to cost of goods sold and vender 
services. In connection with the District's future infrastructure maintenance and replacement plan, 
the District Board has included in the budget, an estimate of those anticipated future costs and has 
assigned a portion of current available resources for that purpose.  
 
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, land owners, customers, investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's 
accountability for the financial resources it manages and the stewardship of the facilities it 
maintains. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact 
Heritage Harbor Community Development District's Finance Department at 250 International 
Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, Florida 32746. 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

September 30, 2022 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
 

- 9 - 

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 709,457$           1,143,372$      1,852,829$      
Accounts receivable 18,890               7,536               26,426             
Assessments receivable 6,876                 -                  6,876               
Inventory -                     30,094             30,094             
Due from other funds 101,144             -                  101,144           
Deposits 1,890                 3,456               5,346               
Prepaid items 4,944                 8,770               13,714             
Restricted assets:
   Cash and investments 107,840             108,274           216,114           
   Assessments receivable 2,645                 -                  2,645               
Capital assets:
   Assets not being depreciated 906,667             1,418,700        2,325,367        
   Assets, net of depreciation 4,424,838          480,384           4,905,222        

      TOTAL ASSETS 6,285,191$        3,200,586$      9,485,777$      

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 50,096$             78,053$           128,149$         
Due to developer 6,000                 -                  6,000               
Due to other funds -                     101,144           101,144           
Accrued interest payable 9,605                 -                  9,605               
Notes and leases payable:
   Due within one year 323,000             82,714             405,714           
   Due in more than one year 425,000             198,899           623,899           

      TOTAL LIABILITIES 813,701             460,810           1,274,511        

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 4,583,505          1,617,471        6,200,976        
Restricted for:
   Debt service 100,880             -                  100,880           
Unrestricted 787,105             1,122,305        1,909,410        

     TOTAL NET POSITION 5,471,490$        2,739,776$      8,211,266$      



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Year Ended September 30, 2022 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
 

- 10 - 

 
Program 
Revenues

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services
 Governmental 

Activities 
 Business-type 

Activities  Total 

Governmental activities
   General government 172,432$          182,619$         10,187$         -$              10,187$          
   Physical environment 893,626            683,950           (209,676)        -                (209,676)         
   Interest on long-term debt 24,240              333,387           309,147         -                309,147          

Total governmental activities 1,114,948         1,199,956        85,008           -                85,008            

Business-type activities
   Golf course 1,062,071         1,276,214        -                 214,143         214,143          

Total business-type activities 1,062,071         1,276,214        -                 214,143         214,143          

Total primary government 2,177,019$       2,476,170$      85,008           214,143         299,151          

General revenues:
   Investment earnings 2,161             370                2,531              
   Miscellaneous income 48,672           -                48,672            
Transfers (402,958)        402,958         -                  
    Total general revenues and transfers (352,125)        403,328         51,203            
         Change in net position (267,117)        617,471         350,354          

Net position - October 1, 2021 5,738,607      2,122,305      7,860,912       

Net position - September 30, 2022 5,471,490$    2,739,776$    8,211,266$     

Net (Expense) Revenues and 
Changes in Net Position



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

September 30, 2022 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
 

- 11 - 

TOTAL

GENERAL
DEBT 

SERVICE
 GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS 

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 709,457$    -$           709,457$             
Accounts receivable 18,890        -             18,890                 
Assessments receivable 6,876          -             6,876                   
Due from other funds 101,144      -             101,144               
Deposits 1,890          -             1,890                   
Prepaid items 4,944          -             4,944                   
Restricted assets:
     Investments -              107,840      107,840               
     Assessments receivable -              2,645          2,645                   

      TOTAL ASSETS 843,201$    110,485$    953,686$             

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 50,096$      -$           50,096$               
Deposits 6,000          -             6,000                   

     TOTAL LIABILITIES 56,096        -             56,096                 

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
     Prepaid items and deposits 6,834          -             6,834                   
Restricted for:
    Debt service -              110,485      110,485               
Unassigned 780,271      -             780,271               

     TOTAL FUND BALANCES 787,105      110,485      897,590               

     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
         FUND BALANCES 843,201$    110,485$    953,686$             

MAJOR FUNDS



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES 

TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
September 30, 2022 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
 

- 12 - 

Total Governmental Fund Balances in the Balance Sheet 897,590$         

Amount reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Assets are different because:

Capital asset used in governmental activities are not financial
   resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds: 

Governmental capital assets 10,747,134      
Less accumulated depreciation (5,415,629)       

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
   and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Accrued interest payable (9,605)              
Governmental bonds payable (748,000)          

Net Position of Governmental Activities 5,471,490$      



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Year Ended September 30, 2022 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
 

- 13 - 

TOTAL

 GENERAL 
 DEBT 

SERVICE 
 GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS 

REVENUES
Special assessments 866,569$     333,387$    1,199,956$         
Miscellaneous revenue 48,672         -              48,672                
Investment earnings 1,890           271             2,161                  
   TOTAL REVENUES 917,131       333,658      1,250,789           

EXPENDITURES
General government 172,432       -              172,432              
Physical environment 648,627       -              648,627              
Debt
   Principal -               311,000      311,000              
   Interest expense -               24,782        24,782                
   Bond issuance costs -               24,650        24,650                
     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 821,059       360,432      1,181,491           

EXCESS REVENUES OVER
   (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 96,072         (26,774)       69,298                

OTHER SOURCES (USES)
   Transfers in (out) (2,972)          (399,986)     (402,958)             
   Issuance of debt -               425,000      425,000              

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES (USES) (2,972)          25,014        22,042                

EXCESS REVENUES OVER
   (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
   AND OTHER USES 93,100         (1,760)         91,340                

FUND BALANCE
   Beginning of year 694,005       112,245      806,250              

   End of year 787,105$     110,485$    897,590$            

MAJOR FUNDS



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Year Ended September 30, 2022 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
 

- 14 - 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 91,340$          

Amount reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
   governmental funds.  These transactions, however, have no effect on net
   assets.  This is the amount of long-term debt issued in the current period. (425,000)        

Repayment of long-term liabilities are reported as expenditures in the 
   governmental fund financial statements, but such repayments reduce
   liabilities in the Statement of Net Position and are eliminated in the
   Statement of Activities:

Payments on long-term debt 311,000          

Certain items reported in the Statement of Activities do not require
   the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
   expenditures in the governmental funds:

Current year provision for depreciation (244,999)        
Change in accrued interest payable 542                 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (267,117)$      



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – ENTERPRISE FUND 

 September 30, 2022 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
 

- 15 - 

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 1,143,372$      
Accounts receivable 7,536               
Inventory 30,094             
Deposits 3,456               
Prepaid items 8,770               
Restricted assets:
   Investments 108,274           
     TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,301,502        

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets:
   Construction in process 214,102           
   Right to use lease - golf carts 354,531           
   Land 1,204,598        
   Infrastructure 6,139,744        
   Equipment and furniture 1,065,890        

8,978,865        
   Less accumulated depreciation 7,079,781        
     Total capital assets (net of depreciation) 1,899,084        

     TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 1,899,084        

      TOTAL ASSETS 3,200,586$      

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 78,053$           
Due to other funds 101,144           
Current portion of right to use lease liability 82,714             

     TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 261,911           

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Right to use lease liability 198,899           
     TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 198,899           

      TOTAL LIABILITIES 460,810           

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 1,617,471        
Unrestricted 1,122,305        

     TOTAL NET POSITION 2,739,776$      



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION – 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
Year Ended September 30, 2022 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
 

- 16 - 

OPERATING REVENUES
Golf course and pro shop 1,276,214$    

   TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,276,214      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 24,204           
Golf course and pro shop 915,283         
Depreciation 122,584         
     TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,062,071      

OPERATING LOSS 214,143         

NONOPERATING REVENUES(EXPENSES)
Interest earnings 370                

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES(EXPENSES) 370                

LOSS BEFORE TRANSFERS 214,513         

TRANSFERS
Transfers in (out) 402,958         

TOTAL TRANSFERS 402,958         

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 617,471         

NET POSITION
   Beginning of year 2,122,305      

   End of year 2,739,776$    
 

 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS – ENTERPRISE FUND 

Year Ended September 30, 2022 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
 

- 17 - 

 BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES 

 ENTERPRISE 
FUND 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers 1,288,941$        
Cash paid to suppliers (923,459)           

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 365,482             

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Right to use lease payments (72,918)             
Transfers in 402,958             

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 330,040             

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (299,263)           
Sale of investments 100,791             
Interest income 370                    

NET CASH  USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (198,102)           

NET INCREASE IN CASH 497,420             

CASH
Beginning of Year 645,952             

End of Year 1,143,372$        

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income 214,143$           
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 122,584             

(Increase) Decrease in:
Accounts receivable (7,477)               
Inventory (11,675)             
Prepaid items (1,980)               

Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 29,683               
Due to other funds 20,204               

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 365,482$           
   



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 18 - 

NOTE A- NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND REPORTING ENTITY 
 

Heritage Harbor Community Development District ("District”) was created on August 26, 1997 by 
Hillsborough County Ordinance 97-9 pursuant to the Uniform Development District Act of 1980, 
otherwise known as Chapter 190, Florida Statutes.  The Act provides among other things, the power 
to manage basic services for community development, power to borrow money and issue bonds, 
and to levy and assess non-ad valorem assessments for the financing and delivery of capital 
infrastructure. 
 

The District was established for the purposes of financing and managing the acquisition, 
construction, maintenance and operation of a portion of the infrastructure necessary for community 
development within the District. 
 

The District is governed by the Board of Supervisors ("Board"), which is composed of five 
members. All of the Board members are affiliated with the Developer. The Supervisors are elected 
on an at large basis by the qualified electors of the property owners within the District. The Board of 
Supervisors of the District exercise all powers granted to the District pursuant to Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes. 
 

The Board has the responsibility for: 
 

1. Assessing and levying assessments. 
2. Approving budgets. 
3. Exercising control over facilities and properties. 
4. Controlling the use of funds generated by the District. 
5. Approving the hiring and firing of key personnel. 
6. Financing Improvements. 

 

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board ("GASB") Statements. Under the provisions of those standards, the financial reporting entity 
consists of the primary government, organizations for which the District Board of Supervisors is 
considered to be financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the District are such that, if excluded, the financial statements 
of the District would be considered incomplete or misleading. There are no entities considered to be 
component units of the District; therefore, the financial statements include only the operations of the 
District. 
 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

The basic financial statements include both government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For 
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 19 - 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued) 
 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with 
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers who purchase, 
use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment. 
Operating-type special assessments for maintenance and debt service are treated as charges for 
services and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Other Items not included among program revenues 
are reported instead as general revenues. 
 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Assessments are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are to be 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been 
met. 
 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the economic financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 
days of the end of the current fiscal period.  
 

Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
 

Assessments 
 

Assessments are non-ad valorem assessments on benefited lands within the District. Assessments 
are levied to pay for the operations and maintenance of the District. The fiscal year for which annual 
assessments are levied begins on October 1 with discounts available for payments through February 
28 and become delinquent on April 1. The District's annual assessments for operations are billed 
and collected by the County Tax Collector. The amounts remitted to the District are net of 
applicable discounts or fees and include interest on monies held from the day of collection to the 
day of distribution.  
 

Assessments and interest associated with the current fiscal period are considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. The portion of 
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual 
as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the government. 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 20 - 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 
 
The District reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
General Fund 
 
The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to 
use restricted resources first for qualifying expenditures, then unrestricted resources as they are 
needed. 
 
Debt Service Fund 
 
The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the annual payment 
of principal and interest of long-term debt. 
 
The District reports the following major proprietay funds: 
 
Enterprise Fund 
 
The enterprise fund accounts for the operations of the golf course, and pro shop, which are funded 
by proceeds from operations of these facilities, included green fees, cart fees, rental fees and food 
sales. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The 
principal operating revenues of the District’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales 
and services. Operating expenses of the enterprise fund include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.  
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity 
 
Restricted Assets 
 
These assets represent cash and investments set aside pursuant to contractual restrictions. 
 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 21 - 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (continued) 
 
Deposits and Investments 
 
The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and demand deposits 
(interest and non-interest bearing). 
 
The District has elected to proceed under the Alternative Investment Guidelines as set forth in 
Section 218.415 (17) Florida Statutes. The District may invest any surplus public funds in the 
following: 
 

a) The Local Government Surplus Trust Funds, or any intergovernmental investment pool 
authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act; 

b) Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit 
quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency; 

c) Interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories;  
d) Direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury. 

 

Securities listed in paragraph c and d shall be invested to provide sufficient liquidity to pay 
obligations as they come due. In addition, surplus funds may be deposited into certificates of deposit 
which are insured. 
 
The District records all interest revenue related to investment activities in the respective funds and 
reports investments at fair value. 
 
Inventories and Prepaid Items 
 
Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when 
purchased. 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 
as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the government activities columns in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, 
individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of 
one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of 
donation. 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 22 - 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (continued) 
 

Capital Assets (continued) 
 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 
capitalized as projects are constructed. 
 

Property, plant and equipment of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 
 

Assets Years
Infrastructure 5-40

Equipment 5  
 

In the governmental fund financial statements, amounts incurred for the acquisition of capital assets 
are reported as fund expenditures. Depreciation expense is not reported in the governmental fund 
financial statements. 
 

Unearned Revenue/Deferred Revenue 
 

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, 
but not yet earned. 
 

Long-Term Obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts are deferred 
and amortized over the life of the Bonds.  Bonds payable are reported net of applicable premiums or 
discounts.  Bond issuance costs are expensed when incurred. 
 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize premiums and discounts, as 
well as issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt 
service expenditures. 
 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 

The statement of net position reports, as applicable, a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources.  Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to 
future reporting period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until that time.  For example, the District would record deferred outflows of 
resources related to debit amounts resulting from current and advance refundings resulting in the 
defeasance of debt (i.e. when there are differences between the reacquisition price and the net 
carrying amount of the old debt). 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 23 - 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (continued) 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (continued) 
 
The statement of net position reports, as applicable, a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources.  Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to 
future reporting period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 
that time.  For example, when an asset is recorded in the governmental fund financial statements, 
but the revenue is not available, the District reports a deferred inflow of resources until such times 
as the revenue becomes available. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) 
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has 
only one item, deferred revenue, which qualifies for reporting in this category. 
 
Fund Equity/Net Position 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report non spendable and restricted fund 
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside 
parties for use for a specific purpose. Assignments of fund balance represent tentative management 
plans that are subject to change.  
 
Committed fund balance - Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a 
formal action (resolution) of the Board of Supervisors. Commitments may be changed or lifted only 
by the Board of Supervisors taking the same formal action (resolution) that imposed the constraint 
originally. Resources accumulated pursuant to stabilization arrangements sometimes are reported in 
this category. 
 
In the fund financial statements, the enterprise fund is presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when the 
related goods or services are delivered. In the fund financial statements, enterprise funds are 
presented using the economic resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and all 
liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their activity are included on their 
balance sheets. Enterprise fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases 
(expenses) in total net position. 
 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 24 - 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (continued) 
 
Fund Equity/Net Position (continued) 
 
Assigned fund balance - Includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for 
specific purposes that are neither considered restricted nor committed. The Board can assign fund 
balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover differences in estimated revenue and 
appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget. Assignments are generally temporary 
and normally the same formal action need not be taken to remove the assignment.  
 
The District first uses committed fund balance, followed by assigned fund balance and then 
unassigned fund balance when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of 
the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 
 
Net position is the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources.  Net position in the government-wide financial statements are 
categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted or unrestricted.  Net investment in capital 
assets represents net position related to infrastructure and property, plant and equipment.  Restricted 
net position represents the assets restricted by the District’s Bond covenants or other contractual 
restrictions.  Unrestricted net position consists of the net position not meeting the definition of either 
of the other two components. 
 
Other Disclosures 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
NOTE C - BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
 

The District is required to establish a budgetary system and an approved Annual Budget. Annual 
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the 
general fund. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. 
 

The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements. 
 

a) Each year the District Manager submits to the District Board a proposed operating budget 
for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 25 - 

NOTE C - BUDGETARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 
 

b) Public hearings are conducted to obtain public comments. 
c) Prior to October 1, the budget is legally adopted by the District Board. 
d) All budget changes must be approved by the District Board. 
e) The budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. 
f) Unused appropriation for annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of the year. 

 
NOTE D – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Deposits 
 
The District's cash balances, including certificates of deposit, were entirely covered by federal 
depository insurance or by a collateral pool pledged to the State Treasurer. Florida Statutes Chapter 
280, "Florida Security for Public Deposits Act", requires all qualified depositories to deposit with 
the Treasurer or another banking institution eligible collateral equal to various percentages of the 
average daily balance for each month of all public deposits in excess of any applicable deposit 
insurance held. The percentage of eligible collateral (generally, U.S. Governmental and agency 
securities, state or local government debt, or corporate bonds) to public deposits is dependent upon 
the depository's financial history and its compliance with Chapter 280. In the event of a failure of a 
qualified public depository, the remaining public depositories would be responsible for covering any 
resulting losses. 
 
Investments 
 
The District’s investments were held as follows at September 30, 2022: 
 

Investment Fair Value Credit Risk Maturities 
Money Market Mutual Funds - First Weighted average of the
American Treasury Obligation CL Y 216,114        S&P AAAm fund portfolio: 9 days
Total Investments 216,114$      

 
Custodial credit risk - For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of the investments or 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District has no formal policy 
for custodial risk. The investments listed in the schedule above are not evidenced by securities that 
exist in physical or book entry form. 
 
Credit risk - For investments, credit risk is generally the risk that an issuer of an investment will not 
fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating 
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Investment ratings by investment type are 
included in the preceding summary of investments. 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 26 - 

NOTE D – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Investments (continued) 
 
Concentration risk - The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one 
issuer. 
 
Interest rate risk - The District does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturities as a 
means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Fair Value Measurement - When applicable, the District measures and records its investments using 
fair value measurement guidelines established in accordance with GASB Statements. The 
framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques. 
 
These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, in order of highest priority, as 
follows: 
 

 Level 1:  Investments whose values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
investments in active markets that the District has the ability to access; 
 

 Level 2:  Investments whose inputs - other than quoted market prices - are observable either 
directly or indirectly; and, 
 

 Level 3:  Investments whose inputs are unobservable. 
 
The fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any 
input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used should 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 27 - 

NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022 was as follows: 
 

Balance 
10/01/2021 Increases Decreases

Balance 
09/30/2022

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land and land improvements 906,667$        -$               -$         906,667$       

   Total capital assets, not being
      depreciated 906,667          -                 -           906,667         

Capital assets, being depreciated
Infrastrure:
   Water and sewer systems 5,725,401       -                 -           5,725,401      
   Roadways and other improvements 3,987,100       -                 -           3,987,100      
   Recreational and security 127,966          -                 -           127,966         
   Total capital assets, being
      depreciated 9,840,467       -                 -           9,840,467      

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastrure:
   Water and sewer systems 3,012,201       144,994          -           3,157,195      
   Roadways and other improvements 2,064,495       96,605            -           2,161,100      
   Recreational and security 93,934            3,400              -           97,334           
   Total accumulated depreciation 5,170,630       244,999          -           5,415,629      

   Total capital assets, being
      depreciated - net 4,669,837       (244,999)        -           4,424,838      

   Governmental activities capital
      assets - net 5,576,504$     (244,999)$      -$         5,331,505$    

 

Depreciation of $244,999 was charged to physical environment. 
 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 28 - 

NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 

Balance 
10/01/2021 Increases Decreases

Balance 
09/30/2022

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 1,204,598$    -$              -$         1,204,598$   
Construction in process -                 214,102         -           214,102        

   Total capital assets, not being
      depreciated 1,204,598      214,102         -           1,418,700     

Capital assets, being depreciated
RTU - golf cart lease 354,531         -                -           354,531        
Infrastrure 6,054,583      85,161           -           6,139,744     
Equipment 1,065,890      -                -           1,065,890     
   Total capital assets, being
      depreciated 7,475,004      85,161           -           7,560,165     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
RTU - golf cart lease -                 78,785           -           78,785          
Infrastrure 6,015,864      2,748             -           6,018,612     
Equipment 941,333         41,051           -           982,384        
   Total accumulated depreciation 6,957,197      122,584         -           7,079,781     

   Total capital assets, being
      depreciated - net 517,807         (37,423)         -           480,384        

   Governmental activities capital
      assets - net 1,722,405$    176,679$       -$         1,899,084$   

 

Depreciation of $122,584 was charged to golf course. 
 

NOTE F – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 

Governmental Activities Debt 
 

$1,495,000 Special Assessment Refunding Note, Series 2018 – July 25, 2018, the District issued 
$1,495,000 in a Special Assessment Refunding Note, Series 2018.  The Note was issued to finance 
the acquisition and construction of certain improvements for the benefit of the property within the 
District and to payoff outstanding debt. The Note is payable in annual principal installments through 
May 2023. The Bonds bear interest at 3.85% payable semi-annually on the first day of each May 
and November. Principal is due serially each May 1, commencing May 2019. 
 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 29 - 

NOTE F – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
$425,000 Revenue Note, Series 2021 – the District issued $425,000 in a Revenue Note, Series 
2021.  The Note was issued to finance the acquisition and construction of certain improvements for 
the benefit of the property within the District and to payoff outstanding debt. The Note is payable in 
annual principal installments through May 2026. The Bonds bear interest at 4.04% payable semi-
annually on the first day of each May and November. Principal is due serially each May 1, 
commencing May 2023. 
 

The Bond Indenture established a debt service reserve requirement as well as other restrictions and 
requirements relating principally to the use of proceeds and the procedures to be followed by the 
District on assessments to property owners.  The District agrees to levy special assessments in 
annual amounts adequate to provide payment of debt service and to meet the reserve requirements.   
 

The District is in compliance with those requirements of the Bond Indenture at September 30, 2022. 
 

The following is a summary of activity in the long-term debt of the District for the year ended 
September 30, 2022: 
 

Balance 
10/1/2021 Additions Deletions

Balance 
9/30/2022

 Due Within 
One Year 

Special Assessment 
Refunding Note, Series 2018 634,000$     -$           311,000$      323,000$     323,000$    
Revenue Note, Series 2021 -               425,000      -                425,000       -              

634,000$     425,000$    311,000$      748,000$     323,000$    
 

The annual requirements to amortize the principal and interest of bonded debt outstanding as of 
September 30, 2022 are as follows: 
 

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 323,000$       26,354$          349,354$          
2024 136,000         17,170            153,170            
2025 142,000         11,676            153,676            
2026 147,000         5,938              152,938            
2027 -                -                  -                    

748,000$       61,138$          809,138$          
 

 

NOTE G – INTERFUND BALANCES 
 
 

 Interfund 
Receivables 

 Interfund 
Payables 

General Fund 101,144$       -$                
Enterprise Fund -                101,144          

Total 101,144$       101,144$        
 

 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 30 - 

NOTE H –LEASES 
 

Business-Type Activities 
 

The District leases golf carts. The District recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use 
lease asset in the government-wide financial statements. At the commencement of a lease, the 
District initially measures the lease liability at the present value of payments expected to be made 
during the lease term. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liability, 
adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus certain initial 
direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life. 
The interest rate on the lease is based on the District’s incremental borrowing rate of 4.08%. The 
details of these leases are listed below: 
 
 

Describe Date
 Payment

Terms 

 Monthly
Payment
Amount 

 Interest
Rate 

 Total Lease 
Liability 

 Balance
09/30/2022 

Golf Cart Lease 7/29/2021 54 Months 7,722$            4.08% 354,531$   281,612$    
7,722$            354,531$   281,612$    

 

The annual requirements to amortize the principal and interest of the lease liability as of September 
30, 2022 are as follows: 
 

September 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 82,714$         9,955$            92,669$            
2024 86,153           6,516              92,669              
2025 89,735           2,934              92,669              
2026 23,011           156                 23,167              
2027 -                -                  -                    

281,613$       19,561$          301,174$          
 

 
NOTE I – INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 

In a prior year, the District and Heritage Harbor Golf & Country Club Association, Inc. (the 
Association) entered into an agreement for shared costs. Reimbursements by the Association are 
reported as a reduction in the District’s current year expenditures. 
  



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

September 30, 2022 
 

- 31 - 

NOTE J – LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

The District entered into a three-year lease agreement with Olympian Restaurant and Bar, Inc. to 
manage and operate its restaurant facility and golf course concessions. The District subleased the 
restaurant to a private company with base rent totaling $57,600 annually.  
 

NOTE K - MANAGEMENT COMPANY 
 

The District has contracted with a management company to perform services which include 
financial and accounting advisory services. Certain employees of the management company also 
serve as officers of the District. Under the agreement, the District compensates the management 
company for management, accounting, financial reporting, computer and other administrative costs. 
 
NOTE L - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and environmental remediation. The District has 
obtained commercial insurance from independent third parties to mitigate the costs of these risks; 
coverage may not extend to all situations. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage over the past three years. 
 



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND 
Year Ended September 30, 2022 

 

- 32 - 

 

 ORIGINAL 
BUDGET 

 

FINAL
BUDGET  ACTUAL 

 VARIANCE
 WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

REVENUES
Special assessments 856,262$    856,262$   866,569$        10,307$       
Miscellaneous revenue 57,600        38,400       48,672            10,272         
Investment earnings 1,000          1,000         1,890              890              

   TOTAL REVENUES 914,862      895,662     917,131          21,469         

EXPENDITURES
Current
   General government 200,702      205,702     172,432          33,270         
   Physical environment 626,044      643,844     648,627          (4,783)          
     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 826,746      849,546     821,059          28,487         

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES
AND RESERVES 826,746      849,546     821,059          28,487         

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
   (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 88,116        46,116       96,072            49,956         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Carry forward surplus -             50,000       -                 (50,000)        
Transfers in (out) -             -             (2,972)            (2,972)          

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
   (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
   AND OTHER SOURCES (USES) 88,116$      46,116$     93,100            (3,016)$        

FUND BALANCES
   Beginning of year 694,005          

   End of year 787,105$        



HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

- 33 - 

The District is required to establish a budgetary system and an approved Annual Budget for the 
general fund. The District’s budgeting process is based on estimates of cash receipts and cash 
expenditures which are approved by the Board. The budget approximates a basis consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (generally accepted 
accounting principles).  
 
An operating budget was adopted and maintained by the governing board for the District pursuant 
to the requirements of Florida Statutes. The budget is adopted using the same basis of accounting 
that is used in preparation of the fund financial statements. The legal level of budgetary control, the 
level at which expenditures may not exceed budget, is in the aggregate. Any budget amendments 
that increase the aggregate budgeted appropriations must be approved by the Board of Supervisors, 
Actual general fund expenditures did not exceed appropriations for the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2022. 
 
The variance between budgeted and actual general fund revenues is not considered significant. The 
actual general fund expenditures for the current fiscal year were lower than budgeted amounts due 
primarily to anticipated costs were not incurred in the current fiscal year.  
 
 



DMHB 
DIBARTOLOMEO, MCBEE, HARTLEY & BARNES, P.A. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 

2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 Fort Pierce, Florida 34950772-461-8833  Fax: 772-461-8872 
591 S.E. Port St. Lucie Blvd., Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984772-878-1952Fax: 772-878-1709 

 

Member AICPA                              Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms                               Member FICPA 
Private Company Practice Section 

 

WWW.DMHBCPA.NET 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

 

To the Board of Supervisors 
Heritage Harbor Community Development District  
Hillsborough County, Florida 
 

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
Heritage Harbor Community Development District, as of September 30, 2022 and for the year 
ended September 30, 2022, which collectively comprise Heritage Harbor Community Development 
District’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 7, 2023. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent 
or detect misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on 
a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 



 

- 35 - 

Compliance and Other Matters  
 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
This report is intended solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A. 
Fort Pierce, Florida 
November 7, 2023 



DMHB 
DIBARTOLOMEO, MCBEE, HARTLEY & BARNES, P.A. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 

2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 Fort Pierce, Florida 34950772-461-8833  Fax: 772-461-8872 
591 S.E. Port St. Lucie Blvd., Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984772-878-1952Fax: 772-878-1709 

 

Member AICPA                              Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms                               Member FICPA 
Private Company Practice Section 

 

WWW.DMHBCPA.NET 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF 
SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES, REQUIRED BY RULE 10.556(10) OF THE 

AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
To the Board of Supervisors 
Heritage Harbor Community Development District  
Hillsborough County, Florida 
 
We have examined the District's compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida 
Statutes with regards to the District's investments during the year ended September 30, 2022. 
Management is responsible for the District's compliance with those requirements. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our examination.  
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about the District's compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our 
examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a 
legal determination on the District's compliance with specified requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned 
requirements for the year ended September 30, 2022. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, 
members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor 
General, management, and the Board of Supervisors of Heritage Harbor Community 
Development District, Hillsborough County, Florida and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

 
DiBartolomeo, McBee Hartley & Barnes, P.A. 
Fort Pierce, Florida 
November 7, 2023  



DMHB 
DIBARTOLOMEO, MCBEE, HARTLEY & BARNES, P.A. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 

2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 Fort Pierce, Florida 34950772-461-8833  Fax: 772-461-8872 
591 S.E. Port St. Lucie Blvd., Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984772-878-1952Fax: 772-878-1709 

 

Member AICPA                              Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms                               Member FICPA 
Private Company Practice Section 

 

WWW.DMHBCPA.NET 

Management Letter 
 

To the Board of Supervisors 
Heritage Harbor Community Development District  
Hillsborough County, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
 

We have audited the financial statements of the Heritage Harbor Community Development 
District (“District”) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022, and have issued our 
report thereon dated November 7, 2023.  
 

Auditors’ Responsibility  
 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of 
the Auditor General.  
 

Other Reporting Requirements  
 

We have issued our Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and Independent Accountants' Report on an 
examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, 
regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General. Disclosures in those report, which are dated November 7, 2023, should be considered in 
conjunction with this management letter.  
 

Prior Audit Findings  
 

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not 
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the 
preceding annual financial audit report. Prior year findings and recommendations were 
implemented as noted or noted in this report.  
 

Official Title and Legal Authority  
 

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and 
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be 
disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The 
information required is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 



 

- 38 - 

Financial Condition and Management  
 

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply 
appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the 
District has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, 
and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the 
District did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.  
 

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied 
financial condition assessment procedures for the District. It is management’s responsibility to 
monitor the District’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in 
part on representations made by management and the review of financial information provided 
by same.  
 

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any 
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not 
have any such recommendations.  
 

Specific Information  
 

As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.554(1)(i)6, Rules of the 
Auditor General, the Heritage Harbor Community Development District reported:  
 

a. The total number of district employees compensated in the last pay period of the 
District’s fiscal year as 45.  

b. The total number of independent contractors to whom nonemployee compensation was 
paid in the last month of the district’s fiscal year as 1.  

c. All compensation earned by or awarded to employees, whether paid or accrued, 
regardless of contingency as $677,820.  

d. All compensation earned by or awarded to nonemployee independent contractors, 
whether paid or accrued, regardless of contingency as $59,771.  

e. The District does not have any construction projects with a total cost of at least 
$65,000 that are scheduled to begin on or after October 1 of the fiscal year being 
reported.  

f. A budget variance based on the budget adopted under Section 189.016(4), Florida 
Statutes, before the beginning of the fiscal year being reported if the district amends a 
final adopted budget under Section 189.016(6), Florida Statutes, this information is 
included on the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures – Budget and Actual – 
General Fund.  

 



 

- 39 - 

As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.554(1)(i)7, Rules of the 
Auditor General, the Heritage Harbor Community Development District reported:  
 

a. The rate or rates of non-ad valorem special assessments imposed by the District range 
from $523 to $1,360 per residential unit.  

b. The total amount of special assessments collected by or on behalf of the District as 
$1,199,956.  

c. The total amount of outstanding bonds issued by the district as $748,000.   
 

Additional Matters  
 

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance 
with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to 
have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which 
warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not 
have any such findings.  
 

2021-01 
 

Finding: The District did not submit the completed annual financial report by June 30, 2022 as 
required by Section 218.32(d) Florida Statues and Rules of the Auditor General. 
 

Management Response: The District will ensure that going forward the audit is completed by the 
June 30th deadline.  
  

Purpose of this Letter 
 

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida 
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Supervisors, and applicable 
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 

 
DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A. 
Fort Pierce, Florida 
November 7, 2023 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 



RESOLUTION 2024-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF HERITAGE 
HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADDING AN 
OFFICER OF THE DISTRICT, AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, Heritage Harbor Community Development District (hereinafter the 
"District") is a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 
190, Florida Statutes, being situated entirely within Hillsborough County, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District desires to add an additional 
Officer of the District by appointment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 1. Scott Smith is added as an additional Assistant Treasurer by appointment. 

2. This Resolution shall become effective at 12:01 a.m. on December 12, 2023.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 12th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2023. 

 
HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CHAIRMAN / VICE CHAIRMAN 
 

ATTEST: 

SECRETARY / ASSISTANT SECRETARY 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8 



RESOLUTION 2024-02 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT DESIGNATING SIGNATORIES FOR THE 
DISTRICT’S OPERATING BANK ACCOUNT(S); AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Heritage Harbor Community Development District (the “District”) is a 
local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes, being situated entirely within Hillsborough County, Florida;  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statues, the funds of the District shall be 
disbursed by the Treasurer and by other such person(s) as may be authorized by the Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has previously established a local operating bank account for the 

District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has previously designated authorized signatories on the bank 

account; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board desires to rescind and repeal the prior designation and designate 

new signatories on the account.  
 
NOW BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT:   
 
Section 1.  The Chair and Vice-Chair of the District’s Board of Supervisors, Scott Smith 

and Johanna Lee and Bridgett Alexander of DPFG Management and Consulting, LLC, are hereby 
designated as authorized signatories on the District’s operating bank account.   

 
Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and shall remain in effect 

unless rescinded or repealed. Further, upon its passage, any previously adopted resolution 
designating signatories on bank accounts for the District is rescinded and repealed. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of December, 2023.  

 
ATTEST: 
   HERITAGE HARBOR COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary     Chair, Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 9 



ESTIMATE

Southscapes Landscape
Maintenance Inc

PO Box 118
Lutz, FL 33548

ARhum@southscapesfl.com
+1 (813) 951-4326
www.southscapesfl.com

Heritage Harbor

Bill to

Tish Dobson
Heritage Harbor
19502 Heritage Harbor Pkwy
Lutz, FL 33558

Estimate details

Estimate no.: 1086
Estimate date: 11/16/2023

# Date Product or service SKU Qty Rate Amount

1. 11/16/2023 Lawn Service 1 $500.00 $500.00

Cut back the oleander hedge, remove weeds and debris on the back side of the 15th green

2. 11/16/2023 Lawn Service 1 $500.00 $500.00

Cut back the oleander hedge, remove weeds, and debris on the back side of the 16th green

3. 11/16/2023 Lawn Service 5 $200.00 $1,000.00

Cut down the 5 dead pine trees along the rail fence berm along the side of the 15th fairway

4. 11/16/2023 Lawn Service 2 $250.00 $500.00

Trim and thin out the 2 areca palm trees at the practice putting greens

Total $2,500.00

mailto:ARhum@southscapesfl.com
tel:+1 8139514326
http://www.southscapesfl.com/


ESTIMATE

Southscapes Landscape
Maintenance Inc

PO Box 118
Lutz, FL 33548

ARhum@southscapesfl.com
+1 (813) 951-4326
www.southscapesfl.com

Heritage Harbor

Bill to

Tish Dobson
Heritage Harbor
19502 Heritage Harbor Pkwy
Lutz, FL 33558

Ship to

Tish Dobson
Heritage Harbor
19502 Heritage Harbor Pkwy
Lutz, FL 33558

Estimate details

Estimate no.: 1087
Estimate date: 11/30/2023

# Date Product or service SKU Qty Rate Amount

1. 11/30/2023 Lawn Service 50 $18.00 $900.00

On the center island tip near the New Haven entrance. Remove the minima jasmine and install a row of 30 3 gallon duranta
along the curb line and 20 3 gallon copper plants inside the duranta

2. 11/30/2023 Lawn Service 3 $50.00 $150.00

Spread 3 yards of pine bark mulch around the new plantings in the center island near the New Haven entrance.

3. 11/30/2023 Lawn Service 26 $18.00 $468.00

On the center island tip near the Kings Gate entrance. Remove the minima jasmine and install 16 3 gallon duranta along the
curb line and 10 3 gallon copper plants inside the duranta

4. 11/30/2023 Lawn Service 2 $50.00 $100.00

Spread 2 yards of pine bark mulch around the new plants in the island near the Kings Gate entrance

5. 11/30/2023 Lawn Service 20 $18.00 $360.00

On the center island near the Bridgeport entrance. Remove the hawthorn and garlic and install 12 3 gallon duranta along the
curb line and 8 3 gallon copper plants inside the duranta.

6. 11/30/2023 Lawn Service 1 $50.00 $50.00

Spread mulch around the new plants on the island near the Bridgeport entrance.

Total $2,028.00

mailto:ARhum@southscapesfl.com
tel:+1 8139514326
http://www.southscapesfl.com/

	Agenda
	Exhibit 1
	Proof of Publication

	Exhibit 2
	Greenview Landscape

	Exhibit 3
	County Water Restrictions

	Exhibit 4
	Steadfast Environmental

	Exhibit 5
	Minutes

	Exhibit 6
	Final FY 2022 Audit

	Exhibit 7
	Resolution 2024-01

	Exhibit 8
	Resolution 2024-02

	Exhibit 9
	Southscapes Landscape Lawn Service Proposals



	rta: 


